KBTG & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members of

Lotus Auto Engineering Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone financlal statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Lotus Auto Engineering Limited (“the
Company”}, which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of Profit and
Loss and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In qur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view of In conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2024,
and its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing {SAs} specified under section
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Compantes Act, 2013 and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsihilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAFs
Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of matter

1. We would like to draw your attention to Note No. 45 to the financial statements which discusses
the completion of the liquidation process in the previous year on September 7, 2022, confirming
the sale of the Corporate Debtor as a Going Concern without dissolution. It also covers the
impact of extinguishing liabilities.
Qur opinion is not modified In respect of this matter,

2. We draw your attention to Note No. 11.4 to the financial statements for the period ended
31.03.2024, which pertains to the disputed trade receivables from a party agalnst which the
company has filed an appeal with Hon’ble NCLT for the recovery of the dues, which has been
dismissed. The matter is now pending before Hon'ble NCLAT and is subjudice as on 31.03.2024.
The management has assured us that the amount remains good for recovery and therefore they
have not considered any provision agalnst the same,

4(}9 4"’HuorSachdwa(uwm.m “Inwnr‘Secmr 8 Rohini {}elha‘fm(m‘

Emall covakashiste barali@peail com
Tel. na. 01] mi}t 7}8347 +91- ‘)9)‘3!3884] 916555958847

“Scanned with CamScanner




on the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. This request has been submitted to the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Dench, with the Intended effective date being Gctober
1, 2023; As of March 31, 2024, this merger scheme has not yet received approval, As a result,
the financial statements do not reflect any impact of the proposed merger.

Our opinion is not modified In respect of this matter.

Information other than the financlial statements and suditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Gur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements ar our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the standalone financlal statements

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 {5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the Accounting Standards {AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Caompany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of dccounting unless management elther Intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseelng the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the apgregote, they tould reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financlal

statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

dentify and assess the risks of materfal misstatement of the standslone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approgpriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation preciudes pubfic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so wauld reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
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Report on other fegal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), lssued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the "Annexure A%, a statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable,

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a}) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowtedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinton, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report are In agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesald standalone financlal statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

{e} On the basls of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure
B”; and

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinlon and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivatives contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

lil. There were no amounts which required 1o be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. {8) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or foaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries®), with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company {“Ultimate Beneficlarles”} or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b} The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and bellef, other than as
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lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢} Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to helieve that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement,

v. The reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 is applicable
from 1 April 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit traif
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

vi. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For KBTG and Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 024946N

Baweal

Kashish Bansal
Proprietor
M. No.: 521925

Place :UDethi
Dated : 22 oq 262\,

UDIN :24521025 DRBAVIRL 29
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ANNEXURE_A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on other lepal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date:

{i) a. The Company has not maintained records on yearly basis for additions / deletions made
during that year showing full particulars including quantitative detalls and situation of property,

plant and equipment.

b. All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the vear but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

d. As informed and explained to us, the management has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment {including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (previously known as Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988) and
rules made thereunder,

{ii} a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate.
inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2024 and no
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect of such physical verification.

b. According to the information and explapations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits from banks and the financial institutions during the year.

{iil} According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the company has not made
investments in, provided any guarantee or security granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLPs, or any other parties.

{ivl According to the information and explanations given to us, The company has not given any loans
or guarantees or made any investments within the meaning of Sections 185 & 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013,

{v} According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or

any other refevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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{vi} According to information and explanations glven te us, the Central Government has not
prescribed malntenance of cost records for the company under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of

the Companies Act, 2013,

{vil) According to the information and explanations given to us, In respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generaily been regular in depositing undisputed dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax., Duty of Custom,
Duty of Excise, Cess, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax and any other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorlties and there were no undisputed dues as at
31st March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable,

b. Asmentioned in Note 45 to the standalone financial statements, pursuant to the issue of the
Certificate of Sale by the liquidator, all the fiabilities of the company, Including contingent
liabilities and statutory dues, have been extinguished. Consequently, there are no
outstanding dues In respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on

account of any dispute,

{viti) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

{ix} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted In repayment of

loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accardingly, clause 3{ix}{c) of the Order Is not

applicable.

{d} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} According to information & explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint
ventures, Therefore, Clause 3{ix){e) of the Order is not applicable,

{f) According to Information & explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint
ventures, Therefore, Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable,
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{x)

(i)

a. According to Information & explanations given to us, The Company has not raised any moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (inchuding debt Instruments). Accordingly,

clause 3{x}a) of the Order Is not applicable,

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable,

a. Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that no fraud was naticed or reported during the course of our
audit, However, in previous years, following the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process and in compliance with Section 25(2)(j) of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
{1BC), the Resolution Professional appointed by the NCLT identified certain transactions under
Sections 43 to 51 and 66 of the IBC. These transactions were submitted to the Hon’ble NCLT in
those years and the matter remains pending and sub judice as of 31.03.2024, The crystallisation
of amount/ future course of action will be carried out based on the judgement/ order of NCLT.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

. As per our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, no whistle blower
complaints were received by the company during the year.

{xii} According to the information and explanations ghven to us, the Company is not a Nidhi

Company. Accordingly, clause 3{xii} of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions

{xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company is not required to have internal audit system during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with him,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act

1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

_ {b} According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

ompany has not conducted any Non-Banking Financlal or Housing Finance activities and is
‘f}‘refore not required to he registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

# Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){b) of the Order Is not applicable.
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{c) According to the Information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company Is not a Core Investment Company {CIC} as deflned In the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, clause 3{xvij{c) of the Order ts not applicable,

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Group
does not have any CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}{d} of the Order Is not

applicable,

{xvii} The company has incurred cash losses during the current financial year amounting to Rs. 56.51
Lakhs but has not incurred any cash losses during the Immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xix} On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 50 to the standalone financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financiaf liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalona financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertalnty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,

will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx} According to the information and explanations given to us by the managerﬁent, and on the
basic of our examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to spend
any amount as per the requirement of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,

clause 3{xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 024946N

Boe )

Kashish Bansal
Proprietor
M. No.: 521925

AS

Place :Delhi
Dated : 2.7.] oq 252\
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
{Referred to In paragraph 2 (f} under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Corpantes Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lotus Auto Engineering
Limited {“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintalning Internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial informatian, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10j of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financlal controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over flnancial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regatding the reliabillty of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that

{1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

standalone financial statements.
INHERENT LIMITATIONS QF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financlal controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeqguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

in our opinfon, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criterfa established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0245846N

Kashish Bansal
Proprietor
M, No.: 521925

Place :Delhi
Dated ‘22'—20 20Ty
UDIN :24521925 RXBG R T R6EA
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLL267057
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 {All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)
Particulars Note | As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
no. 2024 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment 5 2,962.34 3,383.23
(b} Intangibfe assets 6 - -
{c} Financial assets
Other financial assets 7 43.93 28.93
(d) Deferred tax assets (net} 8 - -
{e) Other non-current assets 9 - -
Total non-current assets 3,006.27 3,412.16
Current assets )
{a) inventories 10 106.45 112,61
{b) Financiai assets ‘
(i} Trade receivables 11 2,191.82 2,244.37
{ii) Cash and cash equivatents 12 28.31 £41.55
{iii) Other bank balances 13 1,493.06 650.00
{iv} Other financial assets i4 43.71 1114
(¢} Current tax assets (net) 15 16.97 11.79
(d) Other current assets 16 28247 387.17
Total current assets 4,167.79 4,058.63
TOTAL ASSETS 7,174.06 7,470.79
EQUITY AND LIABELITIES
EQUITY
(a} Equity share capital 17 436.00 436,00
{b) Other equity 18 3,782.65 4,267.89
TOTAL EQUITY 4,218.bY 4,703.89
LIABILITIES ’

Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Habitities

Borrowings 19 2,352.06 2,177.83
{b) Provisions 20 5.00 337
{¢) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 8 - -
Total non-current Habilities 2,357.06 2,181.20
Current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities i
(iY Borrowings 21 - - ;
(ii) Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl enterprises 6.56 413
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 27.24 35.47
small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 546,32 541.69
{h} Other current liahilities 24 4,45 4.34
() Provisions 25 13.78 0.07
Total current liabilities 598.35 585.70
TOTAL LIABHITIES 2,955.41 2,766.90
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,174.06 7,470.79

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-56
The accompanying notes form an integrai part of the financiat statements
As per our report of even date attached

For KBTG and Associates For and on behalf of the 8oard of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 24946N _

%ﬂ $€ e,,,.

HEW mw} %

Relody ¥

Kashish Bansal gy Rakesh Kumar Khyali Ram
Proprietor "‘@f L é\ Director Director
Membership No.: 521925 o DIN: 08958137 DIN: 08286490

Date: May 22, 2024
Place: New Delhi

UDIN ; 24521925 DU BG HE 8689




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
no, 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 26 648.30 645.88
Other income 27 86.56 12,55
TOTAL INCOME 734.86 658.43
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 28 4.05 17.17
Changes in inventories of finished goods 29 5.61 -18.61
Employee benefits expense 30 300.76 237.00
Finance costs 31 174.23 83.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 422.58 412.89
Qther expenses 33 306.35 223.14
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,213.58 955.36
Profit /{Loss) before exceptional items and tax -478.72 -296.93
Exceptional items 34 - -
(Loss) before tax -478.72 -296.93
Tax expense 35
Current tax 0.37 -
Deferred tax 45.30 -308.40
Total tax expense 45.67 -308.40
Profit/ (Loss) for the year -524.39 11.47
Other comprehensive income 36
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -6.15 -
[tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to
{temns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -6.15 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising profit/ (loss} for 11.47
the year and other comprehensive income for the year) -530.54
Earnings per equity share (Par value of Rs, 10 each) 37
Basic (Rs.) -12.03 0.26
Diluted (Rs.} -12.03 0.26
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computed
earnings per equity share :
Basic 4,360,000 4,356,619
Diluted 4,360,000 4,356,619
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

{A} Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at 1st April, 2022 435,22
Equity shares cancelled during the year {Refer note no. 17.1.1} {435.22)
Equity shares allotted during the year [Refer note no. 17.1.3) 436.00
As at 31st March, 2023 436,00
Equity shares cancelled during the year -
Equity shares aliotted during the year -
As at 3ist March, 2024 436.00
(B} Other equity
Particulars Share application | Equity component Reserves and surplus Total
money pending of cormpound Capital Securities Retained
allotment financial reserve premium earnings
stramants
As at 31st March, 2022 436,00 - 46,351,79 20,945,77 (64,437.89) 3,295.67
Profit for the year - - - - 11.47 11.47
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - M
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 11.47 11.47
Capitzl reserve on cancellation of equity shares . . 435.22 - 435,22
including expenses incurred in relation te liquidation
proceedings
Allotment of equity shares during the year {Refer {436.00) - - - - (436.00)
note no, 17)
Cquity component on issue of optionally fully - 1,469.93 - - - 1,269.93
convertible debentures )
Deferred tax on fair valuation of optionally fully B - - {308,40) (308.40)
convertible debentures
As at 31st March, 2023 - 1,269.93 46,787.01 20,845.77 (64,734.82) 4,267.89
Profit/ (Loss) for the year B . . - (524.28) {524.39)
Other comprehepsive income for the yvear - - - {6.15) [6.15)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - {530.54) (530.54)
Deferred tax on fair valuation of optionally fully . - - 45.30 45,30
copvertible debentures
As at 315t March, 2024 - 1,269.93 46,787.01 20,945.77 {65,220.06) 3,782.65

Refer note no. 18 for nature and purpose of items of other equity

Accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ {Loss) before tax (478.72) {296.93)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 422.58 412.89
Finance costs 174.23 83.77
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost (84.61} {11.10)
Impairment in the carrying value of property, plant and eguipment - -
and intangible assets
Operating profit before working capital changes 33.48 188.63
Movement in working capital:
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 6.16 (10.84)
Decrease/ {increase) in trade receivables 52.55 {60.87)
{increase} in other financial assets - {0.12)
Decrease in other current and non-current assets 104.70 970.65
(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables (5.80} 11.59
Increase in other financial liabilities 4.63 1.76
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities 0.11 (0.48)
Increase in provisions 9.18 3.494
Cash generated from/ (utilised in) operations 205.02 1,103.76
Taxes (paid)/ refund (net) o {5.55) (8.35)
Net cash generated from/ (utilised in) operating activities 199.47 1,095.41
(B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment {1.69} {0.85)
Fixed deposits placed with banks {858.06}) {650.00)
Interest received an fixed deposits 47.04 1.11
Net cash (utilised in}/ generated from investing activities {812.71} (649.74}
{C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of optionally fully convertible debentures - -
pending allotment
Repayment of borrowings -
Proceeds from issue of equity shares pending allotment -
Interest paid - {0.01)
Net cash generated from financing activities - {0.01})
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {613.24) 445.66
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 641.55 195.89
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 28.31 641.55

Notes to the statement of cash flows

1. Significant non-cash movements in borrowings during the year include:
{a) amortisation/effective interest rate adjustments Rs. 174,23 Lakhs (2022-23: Rs, 1,186.17 Lakhs).

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited -
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

1. Corporate Information

Lotus Auto Engineering Limited (“LAEL” or “the Company”) is a public fimited company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is situated in  Kolkata in the state of West Bengal,
India. The principal business activity of the Company is “Processing of machine parts” required in
automobile industries and all other activities are incidental thereto.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 was approved for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on May 22, 2024 and is subject to the adoption by the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

2. Basis of preparation

a.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have heen prepared under Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS")
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and other relevant
provisions of the Act {to the extent notified) and presentation requirements of Division ii of Schedule
IH to the Act, as apphcable to the financial statements,

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) till the financial statements are
approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company has been consldered In preparing these
financial statements,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing Iind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value. ‘

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration
given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition, or the amount of proceeds received in
exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to
satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.
New and revised standards adopted by the Company

On 31st March 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made certain amendments to existing
indian Accounting Standards vide Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023.
These amendments to the extent relevant to the Company's operations were relating to:

Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” which requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies,

Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” whereby definition of
‘accounting estimates’ has been introduced and include amendments to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

Further, consequential amendments with respect to the concept of material accounting policies have
also been made in Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" and Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial

Reporting”.

There are other amendments in various standards including ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards”, Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations”, ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”, ind
AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” which has narrowed the
scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences and Ind AS 102 “Share-based Payment” which have not
been listed herein ahove since these are either not material or relevant to the Company.

Revision in these standards did not have material impact on the profit/ loss and earnings per share
for the year.

d. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (up to

two decimals) unless indicated otherwise,

3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application ot accounting policies and
the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and reiated disclosures including
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and
management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable
and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

To enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of

estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that may have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the

following notes:
Critical judgments and estimates

+ Useful life of property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual vaiue at the end of its life.
The useful lives and residual value of the asset are determined by the management when the
asset is acquired and reviewed at-least annually during each financial year end. The lives are
based on technical evaluation, technological obsolesces and historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their lives. This re-assessment
may result in a change in depreciation expense in future periods.
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

+ Impairment of property, plant, and equipment

The Company estimates the value in use of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) based on future cash
flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating
results and growth rates, and anficipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using
a suitabie discount rate to calculate the present value. Further details of the Company’s
impairment review and key assumptions are set out in note no. 5.2

+ Post retirement benefit plans

The Company’s retirement benefit obligations, cost of the defined henefit gratuity plan and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, inflation, future salary increments
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at-least annually during each financial year end.

¢  Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood ot the contingent events has been made based on best judgment by
management regarding probable outflow of economic resources, Such estimation can change
due to unforeseeable developments.

4. Material accounting policies

Summary of the material accounting policies for the preparation of financial statements as given below
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These accounting
policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing relevant and reliable
information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. These policies need
not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

a) Property, plant, and equipment

* An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

e Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of property,
plant and equipment are capitalised.

e Spare parts (procured along with plant and equipment or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalised. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming
part of inventory,

* Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all property, plant and equipment
under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April 2021,




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

Under the previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were stated at their original cost (net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any} adjusted by revaluation of certain assets.

All property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost on date of
transition and acquisition price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the matter intended by the management, In addition, borrowing costs
incurred during the period of construction of qualifying asset is capitalised as part of asset’s cost
until such time that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant, and equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalised and
its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use are derecognised.

Costs incurred after initial capitalization are included in the assets’ carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to Company and can be measured reliably.
However, the costs of regular servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use, if any, is
inciuded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for provisions are met.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefu! lives, they are
accounted for as separate components. Otherwise, these are added to and depreciated over the
useful life of the main asset,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
derecoghition of the asset [calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Property, plant, and equipment include leasehold land classified as Right-of-use assets.

b} Capital work-in-progress

Property, plant, and equipment that are not ready for its intended use as on the reporting date are
disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction {including a project} is carried at cost under
CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-refundable
taxes, expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site
preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation, and assembly costs, etc.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, depreciation on assets used in construction
of project, interest during construction and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management are accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction
{EAC)" and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over major immovable assets , other than
land. Net pre-commissioning income/ expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets.

Advances paid towards acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at

- each reporting date are classified as capital advances under “Other non-current assets”.
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CiN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

¢) Intangible assets and Intangible Assets Under Development

.
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Expenditure on research is charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.
Expenditure on development is recognised as intangible assets from the date when all of the
following conditions are met;

o completion of the development is technically feasible;
o itis the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
o Itis clear that the intangible asset will generate probabie future economic benefits;

o adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset is available;

o itis possible to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development,

Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its
intended use, or if these criteria are no longer applicable.

Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any
associated expenditure is treated as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Transition to ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all intangible assets under the
previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April 2021.

Under the previous GAAP, intangible assets were stated at their original cost {net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment, if any).

intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost on date of
transition and any directly attributable expenses necessary to make the asset ready for its
intended use. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset if it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the Company

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the use of the asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

d) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as foows {Land- 99years)

if ownership of the ieased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of

the asset.

e) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets

Depreciation or amortisation is provided to write off, on a straight-fine basis, the cost/ deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including right-of-use assets to their residual
value. These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use
and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives or, in the case of right-of-use assets, over

the lease period, if shorter.
Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their

intended use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as
held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognised. Therefore, depreciation does not cease when

the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for categories of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets are
as follows:
Category of asset Estimated useful life (years)
Building 30
Plant and equipment 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers 3
The residual values of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has been kept at 5 percent or less of

the cost of the respective assets.

The estimated useful lives of assets, residual values and depreciation/ amortisation methods are
reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised.

f} Impairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value
of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

g}

h)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value
does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset {or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recoghised in the statement of profit and loss immediately. '

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at measurement date. Normaliy at initial recognition, the
transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it
uses inter-alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair vaiue hierarchy. This categorisation is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

» lLevel 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or financial
liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A financial asset is
recognised when and only when the Company becomes party to the contractual provision of the
instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade
receivables, security deposits, etc.
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CIN- U74120WB2010PLC267057
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

e (Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
o atamortised cost
o at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and

o atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the following:

o the entity’s business mode] for managing the financial assets and
c the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains or losses are either recorded in the statement of profit
and ioss or under other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business mode! in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOC!.

* Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at transaction price, if the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component.

¢ Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amaortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2024

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FYTOCI if both the foliowing conditions are met:

o The objective of the business model Is achleved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

o The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest {SPP1)
on the principal amount cutstanding.

Debt instruments at FVTOC! are measured at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises
interest income, impairment losses, reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using EIR method.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities are measured at fair value. Equity investments which are held
for trading, if any, are classified at FVTPL. The Company classifies all other equity instruments,
if any, at FVTOCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification for measurement at FVTOC! is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

All fair value changes of an equity instrument classified at FVTOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

There is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to profit or loss, However,
the Company may transfer cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss as “Other income” when the Company’s right to
recejve payments is established,

Equity investments included within FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in profit or loss.

. Dereéognin’on
A financial asset is derecognised only when;
o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

o Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing

involvement in the financial asset.
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On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and amount of consideration
received/ receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

* Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) madel for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets:

o Financial assets, that are debt instrument, and are measured at amortised cost.
o Financial assets, that are debt instrument, and are measured at FVTOC!.

o Contract assets and trade receivables under ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”,

The Company follows the ‘simgplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
ioss from initial recognition on contract assets, and trade receivables resulting from transactions
within the scope of Ind AS 115,

For recoghition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. For assessing increase in credit risk
and impairment loss, the Company assesses the credit risk characteristics on instrument-by-
instrument basis. I, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company
reverts to recognize impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. The amount of
expected credit loss/ reversal for the period is recognized as expense/ income in the statement
of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are assets:

+ held for sale in the ordinary course of business;
» inthe process of production for such sale; or

* in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Cost of inventory comprises the purchase price, cost of conversion, import duties and other taxes
{other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company from taxing authorities} and other
directly atiributable costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.
Borrowing costs {other than in respect of circumstances where inventories are purchased on deferred
settlement terms} are not included in the value of inventories. The cost of inventories is computed on

a weighted average basis.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories is
recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss occurs.
Equity share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as Equity.

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the Company's assets after
deducting all its Habilities.

tncremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares and buy-back of equity
shares are shown as a deduction from the Equity net of any tax effects.

Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in India a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders,
However, Board of Directors of a Company may declare interim dividend during any financial year out
of the surplus in statement of profit and loss and out of the profits of the Financial year in which such
interim dividend is sought to be declared. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.
Final dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as
change in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders and the
Board of Directors respectively.

Financial Habilities
Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial

asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables.

* Classification, initial recognition, and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, over
the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

* Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss or in the
carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inciusion, when the liabilities are
derecognised as wel as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the

statement of profit and loss.
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+ Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelted or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

m) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settie the liabilities simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a lability on an
amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion eption classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the fair value of
the liability component from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole.
Conversion option which is required to be settled by exchange of fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of Company’s own equity instruments is considered as equity and
recognised as a separate line item under “Other Equity”, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. The sum of the carrying amounts assigned to the liability and equity
component on initial recognition is always equal to the fair value of the instrument as a whole, In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion aption is
exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to another item of equity
i.e., Retained earnings. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible note, the balance recognised in equity is transferred to Retained earnings. Upon
conversion of the compound financial instrument at maturity, the liability component is derecognised
and recognised as equity depending upon the terms of conversion. No gain or loss is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option,

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the ailocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs refating to
the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
compoenent are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortized over the
lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

o} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

REWDELH 1)
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e Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
because of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
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amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on management estimate of
the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably, The expense relating to a
provision net of any reimbursement is presented in the statement of profit and loss or in the
carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liahility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disciosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed based on judgment of management/ independent experts.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current

management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable based on judgment of management.
These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the

financial statements.

Onerous contracts- An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e.,
the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is
the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil
it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e.,
both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities)

p] Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers is accounted for only when it has commercial substance, and
alf the following criteria are met:

parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to performing their
respective obligations;

each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and payment terms there
against can be identified;

consideration in exchange for the goods or service to be transferred is collectible and
determinable.
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The revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation when contro! over the goods or
services has been transferred and/ or goods/ services are delivered/ provided to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped or delivered to a specific location, and the
customer has either accepted the goods under the contract or the Company has sufficient evidence
that alt the criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price {consideration specified in the contract with
the customers) alfocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of
variable consideration on account of discounts offered by the Company and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

q) Otherincome

» Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.

» For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call, and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

r) Employee benefits
s Short term employee benefits

Short-term empioyee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such

inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance related
cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
because of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

+ Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
centributions into separate trusts and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction from future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution
plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the service are discounted to their present value. ‘

s Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, which is calculated by external actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

g heott
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The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounﬁng the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit
obligation. The said cost is included in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and

loss.

Re-measurement gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptons are recognized directly in other comprehensive income in the peried in which they
occur and are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as
described in Ind AS 109 “Financial instruments”,

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
gualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take
substantial period to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed

in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a gualifying asset, the
borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of the borrowing costs is computed
based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used
for the acquisition, construction/ exploration, or erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing
costs applicabie to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are
excluded from this calculation, untif substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for
its intended use or sale are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying assets for their intended use are complete,

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.

« Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year based on the tax laws
applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in previous years. Taxable pro-
fit differs from profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of
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income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years (temporary differences) and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible (permanent differences).

» Deferred tax

o Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the taxabie profit or loss nor the accounting profit or loss.

o The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

o Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
flow in the way the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities

o Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity.

o Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.

u) Segment reporting

* In accordance with ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified based on internal reports used by the Company’s management
to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance, The Board of Directors is
collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of

ind AS 108.

» The principal business activity of the Company is “Processing of machine parts” required in
automobile industries and all other activities are incidental thereto.

+ The Company has a single geographical segment as all its operations are located within the

’

country.
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v) Material prior period errors

——

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
the prior periods presented in which the error occurred, If the error occurred before the earliest
period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period
presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the comparative information is
adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

Earnings per share

* Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the financial year.

e Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and the weighted average number of equity shares
that couid have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information. Presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
vatue, and bank overdrafts. However, for balance sheet presentation, bank overdrafts, if any, are shown
within “Borrowings” under current liabilities. Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with
the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

y) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. Based on the nature of services of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

*  Anasset is current when it is:
o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

e A liability is current when it is:

o Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
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o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Due to be settled within tweive months after the reporting period, or

o There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
¢ Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

z) Recent pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”) has not issued, under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, any new standards or made amendments to the existing standards under the said
Rule, which are effective from 1st April, 2024 and applicable to the Company.
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{All amount in Rs. fakhs, except otherwise stated)

5

15,3

Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land- right Buitding Plant and Furniture and Office Computers Total

of use equipment fixtures equipment
Gross carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2022 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 6.07 31,179.69
Additions during the year - - - - - 0.85 0.85
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 6.92 31,180.54
Additions during the year - - - - - 1.69 1.69
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2024 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 8.61 31,182.23
Accurmulated impairment
As at 31st March, 2022 - 5,025.19 21,413.86 137 0.49 1.55 26,448.46
Additions during the year - - - - - - -
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 v 5,025.19 21,413.86 7.37 0.49 1.55 26,448.46
Additions during the year - - - - - - -
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2024 - 5,025.19 21,413.86 7.37 0.49 1.55 26,448.46
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31st March, 2022 23.95 70.35 833.09 6.57 0.20 1.80 935.96
Additions during the year 23.95 30.04 350.88 5.88 0.23 191 412.89
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 47.80 100.39 1,183.97 12.45 0.43 3.71 1,348.85
Additions during the year 23,95 31.30 365.63 1.16 0.04 0.50 422.58
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at 31st Warch, 2024 71.85 131.69 1,549.60 13.51 0.47 4.21 1,771.43
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2023 1,515.09 602.37 1,262.23 1.81 0.07 1.66 3,383.23
As at 31st March, 2024 1,491.14 571.07 896.60 0.65 0.03 2.85 2,962.34

1 The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
In earlier years, the Company had carried out the Impairment testing determining the Fair Value less cost to Sale and Vatue in Use of PPE. For the said
purpose, the Company's business was divided into one Cash Generating Unit (CGU) comprising of plant situated at 8hiwadi for arsiving at the value in

use. Value in use has been computed as per the Discounted Cash Flow method based on future projections and assumptions.

Based on such review impairment of Rs. 26,450.14 {inciuding Rs. 1.68 in respect of intangible assets (refer note no. 6)} was made as on 31st March,
2022. The amount of impairment has been further reviewed in the current year based on current business operations and projections and fair value
of the CGU and no further adjustment in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as estimated has been considered

necessary.

Intangible assets

Particulars

Computer softw.

Gross carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2022

Additions during the year

Cisposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2023

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2024

1.68

1.68

Accumulated impairment
As at 31st March, 2022

Additions during the vear

Disposa¥/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2023

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2024

Accumuiated amortisation

As at 31st March, 2022

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2023

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2024

Net carrying amount

¢TAs. at 31st March, 2023
oF,
héﬂ 31st March, 2024
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7 Othet frienclsl #iaets. noncurrent

[rartheotars Etfet bote no. Asat 3iat AsaraTat

. March, 2024 March, 2013
AL pmaitised eyt
Unsecured, censtdered gaod
Sevutity depaiits i3n 1393
Ras1 depvants with more than 13 months matarity 15007 .
Yoral . 43.9) 21.93

£ Deterred tax asyets {ned)

Particulzrs Refer nate no, Arat i1t Asatdin
) ) March, 2004 farch, 3073
Delerred tax assels BALE2 . .
Deterred tax Babilitiey 8.1 M -
\Defrered tax asyels (net) _ _ . - =
81 Components of defetred tax asiety) {itablities) are a1 follows
Partinutars Atat3tMarch,]  Chargef [eredit} therge/ {crefn) | Axatatst
223 tecogrksedinprofitor | recognisedin | March, 2024
loss ety
Unaborted brovght feriward loises and depreclation as per acome 30840 4530 . 28110
Yax Act
Total deferred taw pgsete 308,40 4538 - 263,10
£ Hubifil,
Eairvatuation of optionally fully coavertibte debentures 308 40 . {45.30) 263.50
Total deferred tax fishlitles 308,40 B 145.30) 162,10
Dederred tax assets/ (abilitles (net} - 45.30 45,30} .
Particutats AS ot 3tst March, Chargef {eredit) Chargef {credit) As at 35t
022 recognlsed in profit or recopnised in March, 2023
loss . eyuity
Yax et i it ittt et tay
Unaborbed brought forward lossas and depraciation a5 per tntome - {308.40) . 0440
Tax Act
Total deferred tax assets - (308.40) - 30840
3% ttinct ol itemy constituth tax Habillih - -
Fair valuation of optisnatly fully convertible debentores - - 308.45 38840
Tatal deferred tax labiifties - . 3840 30840
Breletred tax ausets/lisbilitles tnet) - {308.40) 30840 -

82 in accordance with the Ind AS 12 *Income Taxes™, defereed tax assete have not been rezognised in emspact of buslness losses and unabsorbed
depreciation In the abisense of virtuad terainity with convincing evidenice thal.suffictent taxable incoms will be available in the fiture agalnst which thel

B,

-

Expiry schedula of lorses a3 per [ncome t8x Return on which deferred tax assats Is not recagnlsed Is as ynden

INR In Lakhs
£xpley of Lossas fas par ' Beyond &
Local tax fsws} 2024-35  ja02526  [a63e27 - lp027.a  ronmss TN Indafinits  {Totst
& Businest Losses 100431 2.281.03 - ~ - 2437 2.925.23
i, Unabssrbeg
Depreciation J5620.50 | 15.628,56
Tots! 30043 { 2,381.03 . - ~ 24317 | A5.628.56 | 38,553.18
9§ Other non<current assels
Particulars Relernotens, 1 Asi3int YL
Atarch, 2024 March, 2028
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advancey . .
Total ) N .
10 Inventoddes
Farticulin Reler note ho, A3 003t Avat ¥
March, 2028 | March, 2023 |

Raw matenals .0 ERE-1)
finished poads 49.0% 55.96
Storey and ipares . nn 238
aap 138 ~
Total 108.45 11161

301 Fusyant 1o the takeover of the Company by tha new management {Refer note no. 45}, the manageniant hat reviewed tha situation hd condiion of
Inventaries. tying as on %th June, 2023 and valued the same at net tealisable vakie s per el best estimate considering the factors including
obsolescencs.

11 Yeade receivables

Partieulacs fRefer note ne. As {3t Asatdfs
March, 2004 Mareh 2013

A smaortised (o1t

Unseeneed, comidered pood 3,191 82 FRLIRY
Tatal T 1,191,832 134837
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Notes 1o the financial stakements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Auto Engineering Limited

{All amount in Rs. fakhs, except othenvise statad);

111 Debts due from directors or any officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
person or debts due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director of the Company is a partner
or a director or a member
11.2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled on credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
11.3 Ageing schedule of trade receivables are as foflows:
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st
2024 March, 2023 |
Undisputed trade receivables
Unsecured, consldered good
Unbilled dues - -
Current but not due 60.86 113.41
Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Less than 6 menths - -
& months-1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total {a) 50.86 113.41
Disputed trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Unbified dues - -
Current but not due - -
Outstanding for foliowing periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months - -
& months-1 year - -
1-2 years -
2-3 years - 2,130.96
More than 3 years 2,130.96 -
Tatal (b} 2,130.96 2,130.96
Total trade receivables {a+h} 2,191.82 2,244.37
114 Trade receivables include Rs. 2,130.96 {31st March, 2023 Rs. 2,130.96) as of 31st March, 2024 and are associated with a party against whom the
Company has initiated legal proceedings by fifing an application with the Hon'ble Natioral Company Law Tribunal {NCLT}, Chandigarh Bench, (o recover
outstanding dues, The NCLT, however, dismissed this agplication in an order dated August 3, 2023. On September 2, 2023, the Company filed an appeal
with the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunaf (NCLAT), Delki, challenging the NCLT's order. The Company is confident in its ability to fully
recaver this amount and, therefore, has deemed it as likely to be collected. Any necessary adjustments to the carrying vaiue will be made in the company’s
baoks of accounts based on the final outcome of the appeal with the Hon'ble NCLAT. As of date of finaiisation of the balance sheet, this matter remains
subjudice.
12 Cash and tash eguivalents
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, As at 31st
2024 March, 2023 _|
Balances with banks in current accounts 28.31 96.55
Chegques on hand i2i - 545.00
Total 28.31 641.55
12.1 Represents the cheque received from Holding Company against the advance given in earlier years.
13 Other bank balances
Particulars Refer note no, As at 31st March, As at 3ist
2024 March, 2023
fixed deposits with banks {having maturity up to 12 maonths) 1.493.06 650,00
Total 1,493.06 650,00
14 Other financial assets- current
Particulars Refer note no. As at 315t March, Asat3lst
2024 March, 2023 |
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
interest accrued on financial assets measured at amortised cost 48.71 il.14
Total 48.71 11.14
15 Current tax assets {net)
Particulars Refer note no. As ar 315t March, As at 31st
2024
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source [net of provision) 151 16.97 11.79
Total 16.97 11.79
15,1 Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source is net of provision of Nil {31st March, 2023- Nil),
16  Qther current assets
Particulars Refer note no. As at 315t March, As at 31st
2024 March, 2623
Advances other than capltal advances
Other atvances
Advances to suppliers and others 0,72 0.31
Balances with government authorities 276.85 384.33
Gthers
Prepaid expenses 4.80 2.53
Toral 282.47 387.17
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(All amaznt in Rs. lakhs, except othenwise stated)

Notes to the financial as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

17  Equity share capltal

Particulars Refer note no, As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2024 2023

Authorised

45,00,000 {31st March, 2023- 45,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 450.00 450.00
450.00 450.00

{ssued, subscribed and paid-up

43,60,000 {31st March, 2023- 43,52,240) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 436.00 436.00
436.00 436.00

17.1 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars

For the year ended

for the year ended

2.
As at the beginning of the year 4,360,000 4,352,240
Equity shares cancelled during the year {Refer note no. 17.1.1) - {4,352,240)
Equuity shares allotted during the year (Refer note no. 17.1.1) 4,360,000
As at the end of the year 4,360,000 4,360,000

17.2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

to the number of equity shares held by equity shareholders.

17.3 Sharehelding pattern in respect of Holding/ Wltimate Holding Company
Deepak Industries Limited is the Holding Company of the Company.

17.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares In the Company

17.1.1 During the previous year, on receipt of Order of Hor'ble NCLY, New Dedhi Principal Bench, tha cancellation and extinguishment of the equity shares held by the erstwhile
shareholders and the allotment of 43,60,000 equity shares to Deepak Industries Limited and its nominees were given effect in the records.

The Company has only one cless of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The Company may daclare and pay
dwidende. The dividend, i any, proposed by the Board of Directors of the Campany is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event
of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion

Name of equity shareholders As at 315t March, 2024 As at 315t March, 2023
Number of equity % shareholding Number of equity % shareholding
shares shares
Peepak Industries Limited 4,359,940 100.00% 4,359,940 100.00%

new equity shares of the Company were subsequently issued to new sharehoiders.
17.7 No securities convertibie into equity shares have been issued by the Company during the year except as stated §
17.8 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
17.9 Details of shareholding of promoters and promoter group

n note no. 19.1

17.5 No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under opticns and contracts/ commitments for sate of shares/ disinvestment as at the balance sheet date.
17.6 The Company has neither afiotied any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares nor has botght back any shares during the period of
five years preceding the date at which the balance sheet is prepared. However, pursuant to the implementation of the sale of the company to the successful bidder i.e. M/s.
Deepak industries Limited during the FY 2021-22, the shareholding of all existing equity shareholders as of the date of the company’s sali as a going concern was terminated, and

As at 31st March, 2024
Name of the promoters and promaoter group Number of equity % shareholding % change during the
F 1514

Deepak Industries Limited 4,359,940 100.00% -
M. Pradip Kumar Daga 10 0.00% -
Mr. Yashwant Kumar Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms. Asha Devi Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms. Nandani Daga 10 0.00% -
Contransys Private Limited 10 0.00% -
|coplama Products Private Limited 10 0.00% -
Total 4,360,000 100.00% -

As at 31st March, 2023

tame of the promoters and promoter group

No. of equity shares

% sharcholding

% change during the
year (Refer note no.

17.9.1%

Deepak industries Limited 4,359,940 100.00% -
Mr. Pradip Kurnar Daga i0 0.00% -
r. Yashwant Kumar Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms. Asha Devi Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms. Nandani Daga 10 0.00% -
Contransys Private Limited 10 0.00% -
Coplama Products Private Limited 10 0.00%

Total 4,360,000 100% -

17.10 No shares have been forfeited by the Company during the year.

17.3.1 As mentioned in note no. 17.1.1, there were cancellation of erstwhile issued shares and afictment of new shares during the previous year, Accordingly, shareholding of ali equity
share holders up to 31st March, 2022 extingulshed and new equity shares of the Company were aliotted 1o equity sharehalders during the previous year.
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
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Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024 |All amount In Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)
18 Other eguity
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, [ As at 315t March,
2024 2023
Share application money pending allotment i8.2{a) - -
Equity component of compound financial instruments 18.2{b} 1,269.93 1,769.93
Reserves and surplus
Capitai reserve 18.2(c) 46,787.01 46,787.01
Securities premium 18.2(d) 20,945.77 20,945.77
Retained earnings 18.2{e) [65,220.06) {64,734.82)
Total 3,782.65 4,267.8%
18.1 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in bafances of items of other equity.
18.2  Nature and purpose of items of other equity
{a) Share application money pending allotment
During the year anded 31st March, 2022, the Company has issued 43,60,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs. 436.00 Lakhs against sale consideration received from
Deepak industries Limited (the suceessful bidder during the fiquidation proceedings). Pending necessary approvals from Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Beach and filing of relevant
forms with Registrar of Cormpanies, Dethi, the said amount has been kept under “Share application money pending allotment" as on 31st March, 2022. During the year ended 31st
March, 2023, the shares have been allotted and disclosed under "Equity share capitai" on receipt of approvals thereupon and update of records with Registrar of Companies,
Delhi,
{b} £quity component of compound financial Instruments
Equity component of compound financiat instrument represents the equity component of Zero Coupon Optienally Fully Convertible Debentures, which is a compound financial
instrument.
¢} Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents adjustments made pursuant to the Order of Hon'ble NCLT, New Dalhi Bench dated 7th September, 2022,

{d) Securlties premium
Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the par value of shares issued and will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

{e] Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the undistributed profit or accurnulated earnings of the Company. This includes net cumulative losses of Rs. 6.15 (315t March, 2023~ Ni) as at the
balance sheet date related to the re-measurement of the defined benefit plan resulting from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions, recognised in other
comprehensive income.

19  Borrowiags- non-current
Particukars Refer note no, Asat31st March, § Agat 31st March,
. 2024 2023

At amortised cost
Secured

From Holding Compasny

Zera Coupen Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures 2,352.06 2,177.83
Total 2,352.06 2,177.83

19.1 Terms and conditions of zero coupon optionally fully convertible debentures
During the year ended 31st March, 2023, on receipt of necessary approvals from Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench, 3,364 number of Zero Coupon Secured Optionally Fully
Convertible Debentures ["SOFCDs") of par value Rs, 1,00,000 each have been issued at par on the following terms and conditions:

{iy  The SOFCDs shall be issued for a tenure of 10 years from the date of allotment or such further pericd as may be mutually agreed between the Company and SOFCDs holder;

{iil  The SOFCDs holder shall have the right 10 exercise the option to convert any one or more of all of SOFCDs into equity shares, or alternatively shail also have the right to intimate
the Company about its willingness to not convert any one or more of all of SOFCDs into equity shares;

fiii)  The halder of SOFCDs shall not be entitled to receive any interest on the face valug of the SOFCDS;

{iv] © Wherein the SOFCDs holder intimates the Company about ts willingness to not convert any one of More or all SOFCOs into equity shares, then the face vaiue of such SOFCDs shail
be repayble to SOFCDs holder within a period of 30 days from the date of recipt of such intimation from the SOFCDs holder alongwith the assured premium of 5% p.a. ("SOFCOs
Redemption Premium”} unless otherwise agreed to between the Company and the SOFCDs holder.

] The SOFCDs holder, at any time during the tenure, shall have the right to convert any one or more or 2l of SOFCDs into such number of equity shares of Rs 10 each of the
Company, which shall give a minimum annual internal rate of return of 3% from the date of allotment of such SOFCDs.

19.2 Nature of security
SOFCDs shall be secured against all the present and future immovable and movable properties of the Company, including land leased to the Company located at Plot No. 5P-
501(B}, Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Rajasthan.

19.2 Compound financlal instrument- Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures
Particulars Amount
Tolal value of debentures issued 3,364.00

Fair value of debentures as on date of allotment 2,094.07

E£quity component as on date of allotment (Refer note no. 18) 1,269.93
Debentures being issued at 0% interest rate has been fair valued and differential has been shown as equity component of compound financisl instruments under "Other equity®.
The Company has considered the rate of interest for amortisation at 3% p.a, as the same has been considered by the holding company in its financial statements,

19.4 Details of debenture holders are as follows:
Debentureholders As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Number of % of debentures Number of
debentures held held debentures hetd  |% of debentures hetd

Deepak Industries Limited 3,364 100.00% 3,364 100.00%

20 Provistons- non-current

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2024 2023
Provision for emplovee benefits
Gratuity 41 2,15 140
Leave encashment 41 2.85 197
o Total 5.00 3.37
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Naotes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{Al amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

21 Borrowlngs- current

Refer note no.

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

Particulars
2024 2023
At amortised cost
Current maturities of long-term debt
Secured term loan from hanks - .
Total R B
22 Trade payables
IParticulars Refer note no. Asat 3tst March, | As at 31st March,
2024 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.56 4.13
Yotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 27.24 35.47
Total 33.80 39.60
22.1 Details of dues to suppliers as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {"MSMED Act”) based on the confirmation and
information avallable with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers are as follows:
Particutars As at 31st March, As at 315t Masch,
2024 2023
1. Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
#) Principal amount unpaid 6.56 4.13
bl interest due - -
2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyvend the appointed day during the year
a) Payment made beyond the appointed date - -
b Interest pald beyond the due date - -
3, The amount of Interest due and payable for the delay In maklng payment {which have been paid but beyond Hie appuinted Jday . -
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
4, The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
5, The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years - -
22.2 Payment towards trade payabies is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract of purchase orders. The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 45 days.
22,3 Ageing schedule of trade payatdes
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,

Particulars

2024

2023

Undisputed, micro enterprises and small enterprises
Unbilied dues
Current but not due
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 yesrs
More than 3 years

Sub-total {a)

Undisputed, creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Unbiled dues
Current but not due
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payiment
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Sub-tatal (b}

Total {a+b)

23 Other financial lfabilities- current

Particulars

Refer note no,

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

2024 2023
At amortised cost
Others
Security deposits 2,75 0.75
Liabilities for accrued expenses 535,18 535.18
Payable to employees 8.39 5.76
Total 546.32 541.69

24 Other current liabilities

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

Particulars Refer note no.
2024 2023
Advance received from customers 265 031
Others
Statutory dues {inciudes goods and services tax, provident fund, tax deducted at source, etc.} 1.80 4.02
Total 4.45 4.34
25  Provisions- current
Particulars Refer note no. Asat 31st March, |  As at 31st March,
2024 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 41 7.80 0.01
Leave encashment 41 5.98 0.06
Total 13.78 0.07
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended 31st March, 2024

{All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

26

27

28

29

30

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Refer nate no.

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Sale of services 370.28 337.23
Sale of Goods - -
Other operating revenue
Salfe of scrap 278.02 308.65
648.30 645.88

Total

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Refer note no.
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 85.76 12.30
Interest on income tax refund 0.34 -
Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly attributable
to such income)
Income Accrued on Job work
Miscellaneous income 0.46 0.25
Total 86.56 12.55
Cost of materials consumed
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Opening stock 10 32.83 50.0G
Add: Purchases during the year - -
Less: Closing stock 10 28.78 32.83
4.05 17.17

Total

Changes in inventories of finished goods and scrap

Particulars

Refer note no.

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Opening stock

Finished goods 10 55.96 37.35

Scrap 10 - -
Closing stock

Finished goods 10 49.07 55.96

Scrap 10 1.28 -
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories of finished goods and scrap 5.61 (18.61)

Employee benefits expense

Refer note no.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Total

Particulars
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Salaries and wages 287.31 226.15
Contribution to provident and other funds 3.44 2.15
Staff welfare expense 10.01 8.70
300.76 237.00
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{AlE amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

31 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Refer note no.
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Interest expense on optionatly fully convertible debentures 174.23 83.76
interest on others - 0.01
Fotal 174.23 83.77
32 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5 422.58 412.89
422,58 412.89

Total

33 Other expenses

Refer note no.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Consumption of stores and spares 116,73 69,03
Power and fuel 94.94 77.57
Repair and maintenance

Building 18.72 12.25

Plant and equipment 36.75 22.64

Others 8.94 0.82
Freight and handling charges 0.22 0.34
Premium on debentures - -
Insurance 3.01 3.63
Rent 0.69 -
Rates and Taxes 1.04 -
Professional, consuftancy and legal charges 33.1 20.78 28.82
Miscellaneous expenses 4.53 8.04
Total 306.35 223.14

33.1 includes auditors' remuneration

Particulars

Refer note no,

For the year ended

For the year ended

Total

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Fee in respect of:
Statutory audit 2.50 2.50
2.50 2.50
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Notes to the financlaf statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024 {All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise ststed)

34 Exceptional items

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Provision for impairment in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment in the carrying value of intangible assets

Total {Refer note no, 5.2} -

35 Taxexpense

. For the year ended for the year ended
Particulars
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Current tax
in respect of current year

In respect of earlier years 0,37 -
Deferred tax {Refer note no. 8.1) 45.30 {308,40}
iTotal tax expense as per profit or loss 45.67 {308.40}

35.1 Reconcillation of tax expense
In the absence of taxable profits during the years ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, reconciliation of tax expense has not been

provided.

35.2  Amounts recognised directly in equity
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in profit or foss or other comprehensive income but directly
debited/ (credited) to equity

Current tax Nil Nil
Deferred tax- charge/ {credit} {Refer note no, 8.1) {45.30) 308.40

353 Taxlosses
Unused tax fosses and depreciation for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 38,627.25 38,818.23
10,043.09 10,002.74

Potential tax benefit @ 26.00%

36 Other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended

Particufars
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

terns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan

Income tax relating to items that wifl be reclassified to profit or foss

Total

Total other comprehensive income for the year {net of taxes)

{6.15) -

{6.15) -

[6.15] -

37 Earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{a) Amount used as numerator- Profit/ (Joss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (524.39) 11.47
(b} weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator for computing basic 4,360,000 4,356,619
earnings per share

{c) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator for computing diluted 4,360,000 4,356,619
earnings per share

{d) Par vaiue of equity shares fs. 10 Rs. 10
{e) Basic earnings per share {Rs.) 12,03} 0.26
(f} Diluted earnings per share {Rs.] {Refer note no. 37.1) {12.03) 0.26

37.1 Optionally Fully Convertible debentures could potentially difute basic earnings per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of
diluted earaings per share because they are antidilutive for the period ended 31st March, 2024,

38 Contingent liabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for)

{a) Contingent liabilities- Nl (31st March, 2023- Nil)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

(b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for- Nit (31st March, 2023- Nit)
Other commitments- Nil (31st March, 2023- Nit}

38.1 Disclosures as required by lndian Accounting Standard 37 "Provisions, Contingent liahilities and Contingent assets”
Contingent asset
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence

of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, During the normal course of business, unresolved claims remain
outstanding. The inflow of economic benefits, in respect of such claims cannot be measured due to uncertainties that surround the related events

and circumstances.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024 {All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

39 Related party disclosures
Information under Ind AS 24 "Related party disclosures” are as follows:

{I) Name of the related parties and description of relationship

{a} Holding Company Deepak Industries Limited (with effect from 7th September, 2022)
Mr. Rakesh Kumar

Mr. Khyali Ram

M. Rajan Dhiman

{b) Key management personnei ["KMP")

[} Transackions with related parties

Sf, no. [Nature of transaction/ Name of related party Helding Company

{i} |lssue of debentures '
{3,364,00)

{ii} |Issve of shares
(436.00)

{iii) |Balances outstanding

£quity share capital 436.00
{436.00)
Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures [Refer note ne. 19 & 39(V)] 2,352.06
(2,177.83)

Cheques on hand -
{545.00)

Faotnote:
Figures in () pertain to balances as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2023

{iff} No remuneration/ sitting fees has been paid/ payable to KMP during the reporting period.
{IV} Other notes:
1} The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those on normal commercial terms.
ii) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Ko provision for bad or doubtful debts has been recognised in current year and previous year

{v) The Company had issued 3,364 number of Zero Coupon Optionzlly Fully Convertible Debentures of Rs. 3,364.00 as above which, as required in terms of Ind AS 109
"Financial instruments”, had been fair valued to Rs. 2,094.07 and corresponding effect had been given in equity component of compound financia# instruments
under "Other equity ". Carrying value of such debentures as on 31st, March 2024 is Rs. 2,352.06 (315t March, 2023- Rs, 2,177.83).

40  Segment reporting

{a)  The Company is engaged primarily in the business of "Processing of machine parts” required in automobile industries and ail other activities are incidental thereto.

(b) Geographical information

{iy  Revenies from external customers

For the year ended for the year ended

Particulars 3ist iviarch, 2024 31st March, 2023
Revenue from operations {Refer note no, 26)
India 648.30 645.88
Overseas - -
Total 648.30 545.88

{ii)  Non-current assets {other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets)

A h
As at 31st March, 2024 75 3¢ 315t March,

Particulars 2023
India 2,962.34 3,383.23
Overseas - -

Total 2,962.34 3,383.23

{c) Information about major customers

Revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenue are as foliows:

Revenue from customer Revenue from customer as a % of total revenuq
Name of the customer For the year ended | For the year ended for the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Customer 3 129.38 277,22 19.96% 42.92
- [Customer 2 138.96 264.87 21.43% 41,01
Customer 3 - 70.24 - 10.88
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Notes to the financial statements as et end for the year ended 314t March, 2024 {AR mount o R, kb, £xcest othaewive stated]

41 Employet benefits:
As pet Ind AS- $9 "Employee benafits®, the disclosures of Employee benefits are as follows:

Defined tontribution plan:

Thé contributions to defined contribution plan recognised as expensa in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as ender:

Yy Farthayearended | For the ysar endeg

_ _ Jist tarch, 2024 313t March, 2073
Contribution to provident fund fincloding pension} o 380 213
Gratulty

The gratuity plan ls governed by the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, Under the sald Act, 3 employee who has completed five years of contihuous serdee is entitled to
the gratuity. The gratulty plan provides a lempsum payment to employees ot retirement, death, Incapacitation or termination of employment. The level of bensfits
- depends onthe member’s fength of service and selary at the time of cessation of the employment contract with the Company.

The following tatles summarizes the components of net beneflt expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognised in
the Balanve sheet for the sald plan:
(2] Detaits of unfunded post ratlcement benefi plant are as follows: .
Sl Ko, tParticutars Forthe yearended | Fot the year ended
st March, 2024 3151 March, 2023
1. JExpenses revognised in the profit or loss
1 [Qurrent service cost 2.29 0.60
2 [Past service cost including curtaitment gains/ losses - 0.81
3 jinterest on the defined benefit flablity 0.10 -
4 iExpense recognised In the profit or toss 2.39 143
B, jOther comprehensive lncome
1 JActuariat [gain}f toss arising from: ’
- changes in financial assumptions 002 -
- changes in experiente adjustments 6.13 .
2__iGomponents of defined benefit costs recognised in Other comprehensive Income 6.15 -
i, |Change In present value of defined benefit obligation
1 [Present vatue of defined benefit obligation at the beginnlng of the year 14% -
2 |interest expense 0.10 .
3 jCurrent service cost 229 0.60
4 IPastservice cost including curtaliment galns/ Tosses - 0.81
5 [Benefits paid . - -
6 {Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from:
- changes ini financlal assumptions 0.02 .
-chanpes In experience adjustments £6.13 -
7 .. JPresent vatue of defined bepefit obligation at the end of the year 9.9% 1.41
1V, _iUabllity recognised in the Balance sheet as at the year end
1 }Present value of defined benefit obligation 595 1.41
2 |Uability tecognised in Balance sheet 9.95 1.4%
-Current 780 001
~ Hon-current 2,15 1.40
V. 1Acuarisl assumptions
1 JDiscount rate {per annum] {in %) 7.23% 7.34%
2 [Expected rate of salary increase (in %) 6.00% £.00%
3 {Retirement/ superannuation age {in years) 58 58
4 [Mortality rates . 1ALM 20122014 ALM 2012-2014
V1. {Maturity profile
[xpecied cash flows {valued on undiscounted basks):
Within the next 12 months .80 2.01
Between 2 and Syears 011 0,40
More than § years 2.04 1.00
Tots! expected payments 9,95 1,43
The sverape duration of the defined benefit plan obligation st the end of the balance sheet date (in yeurs} 13.97 12.82
VH, 5easitivity analysis on present value of defined benefit obligations
Giscount rates
0.50% Incteste {0.10) {0.05)
O.50% decrease 0.1 0.05
£xpected rates of sataty increases
0.50% increase on 085
0.50% decrease {011 {0.05)
/"KS‘] sonsitivity anatysls shove has been detennined based on 3 method that extrapolates the lmpact on defined benetit abtigation as a resuit of reagonable
&“"& -g(‘:g} In key assumptions occurring 35 81 the balance sheet date.
ﬁ/- Al ‘rf*\i_ vities are caltidated using the same actuaral methad as for the disclased prosest value of the defined benedits obligation at year eod.
[ XTI CI RU T :
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

[b} Details of other long term benefits are as follows:

{i} Earned leave {upfunded)
Sl

Particulars

Leave encashment (Earned leave)

Retirement/ superannuaticn age {in vears)

1ALM 2012-2014

IALM 2012-2014

Mortality rates

No. {Unfunded)
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
l.__|Components of employer expense
1 jCurrent service cost 1.97 0.61
2 [Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses - 0.98
3 {Interest cost 012 -
4 |Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 457 -
S5 |Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss £.66 1,50
Il.__[Change in present value of gbligation
1 |Presentvalue of obligation at the beginning of the vear 1.59 -
2 lInterest cost 0.12 -
3 jCurrent service cost 1.97 0.61
4 |Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses - 0.58
5  |Benefits paid - -
6 [Actuariai (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 4,57 -
7....|Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.25 1.59
1. |Liability recognised in the Balance sheet as at the year end
1 iPresent vaiue of defined benefit obligation 8.25 1.59
2..._|tiability recognised in Balance Sheet 825 159
IV, |Actuarial assumptions
1 [Discount rate {per annumj {in %} 7.23% 7.34%
2 |Expected rate of salary increase {in %) £.00% 6.00%
3 |Retirement/ superannuation age {in years} 58 58
4 Mortality rates 1ALM 2012-2014 JALM 2012-2014
V. |Maturity profile
£xpected cash flows (valued on undiscounted basis);
Within the next 12 months 5.96 0.03
Between 2 and 5 years 0.15 0.50
More than 5 years 2.14 1.06
Total expected payments 8.25 1.59
{ii) Sick leave {unfunded)
Sl |Particulars Leave encashment (Sick feave)
No. {Unfunded)
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
I, iComponents of employer expense
1 |Current service cost 0.i3 0.19
2 |Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses - 0.25
3 Interest cost 0.03 -
4 |Actuarial (gainl/ loss recognised in the vear (0.02} -
5 |Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Q.14 0.44
. JChangei f ohii n
1 jPresent value of obligation at the beginning of the vear 0.44 -
2 |interest cost 0.03 -
3 |Current service cost 213 0.19
4 [Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses - 0.25
5  |Benefits paid - -
6 |Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the vear 10.021 -
7 iPresenty ligation g of th r Q.58 0.44
i, izbi in the Balance sh h ren
2 [Present value of defined benefit obifiration 0.58 0.44
2 .._iLiability recogoised in Balance Sheet 0.58 0.44
IV, |Actuarial assumptions
1 [Discount rate {per annum) {in %) 7.23%: 7.34%
2 1Expected rate of salarv increase {in %} 6.00% 6.00%
3 58 58
4
V.

Maturity profile

Expected cash flows {valued on undiscounted basis):

Within the next 12 months 0.02 0.03
Between 2 and 5 years 0.38 0.13
More than 5 vears 0.18 0.28
Total expected payments 0.58 0.44

{c)  Risks related to defined benefit plans:
The maior risks to which the Company is exposed in relation to defined benefit plans are:
i} Salaryinflation risk:
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.
fii}  Discount rate:
Reduction in discount rate can increase the defined benefit obligation.
fiit Mortality and disability:
Actual deaths and disability cases nroving lower or higher than assumed can impact the defined Senefit obligation.
(d)  Otherdisclosures

sick leave) has been clubbed with "Salaries and wages" under note no. 30 "Employee henefits expense”.

The provident fund expenses have been recognised under "Contribution to provident and other funds" and gratuity and leave encashment {earned leave and
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42 Financial instruments- Accounting, Classification and Falr value measurements

U74120WB2010PLC267057

{allamount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows:

Particulars Refer note no. Carrying amount and fair value Total
Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOC!
Financial assets {current and non-current)
Security deposits 7 28.93 - - 28.93
{28.53) () Q] {28.93)
Trade receivables 11 2,191.82 - - 2,181.82
(2,244.37) ) Q] (2,244.37)
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2831 - - 28.31
{641.55) {-) -} (641,55}
Gther bank bafances 13 1,493.06 - - 1,493.06
{650.00) -} {-} (650.00)
Other financial assets 7814 63.71 - - 63.71
(11.34} {-) (=) {11.14)
Total 3,805.83 - - 3,805.83
{3,575.99) £ £} {3,575.99)
Financial liabilities {current and non-current)
Borsowings 19 2,352.06 - - 2,352.06
(2,177.83) ) ) (2,177.83)
Trade payahles 22 33.80 - - 33.80
{39.60) -] -} [39.60]
Other financial liabilities 23 546,32 - - 546.32
(541.6%] - -1 (541.69}
Fotal 2,932.18 - v 2,932,418
(2,759.12} (-} - {2,759.12)
Footnote:

Figures in {) pertain to balances as at 3ist March, 2023

e REV DL %JQ

43 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities include trade payables and other financial liabilities and principal financial assets inciude trade receivables, cash and cash
equivaients, other hank balances and other financial assets.
The Company is exposed to credit risk, hquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior management under the supervision of Board of Directors oversees the
management of these risks, The Company’s financial risks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identifred, measured and
managed in accerdance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

{a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market fluctuations resulting in variation in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument.
The major components of market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings.

{i} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fiuctuste because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does
not have any transactions in foreign currencies and as such, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

{iiy  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's
borrowing cbiigation as on reporting date is limited to borrowings availed from the Holding Company in the form of zero coupon optionally fully convertible
debentures which is strategic in nature angd accordingly, the exposure to changes in interest rate is minimal.

(i} Commodity price risk
The Company being engaged in processing of maching parts for automobile industries, as such, is not exposed to commodity price risk.

{iv] Other price risk
The Company i$ not exposed to any other price risk.

{b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a custormer or counterparty will not meet its obiigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financiat loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). The management has a credit policy in pface and the expesure to credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of amounts outstanding, taking inte account the financial
conditions, cusrent economic trends and ageing of amounts receivabie.
The casrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financlal statements represeats the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, investment ir fixed deposits are insignificant as counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

{c)  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defmed as the risk that the Company will not be able to settie or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's objective is to
maintain optimum level of fiquidity to meet its cash and coilateral requirements at all times. The Company which was under liquidaticn till previous periods and was
under insolvency process has come out from these on being funds infused hy one of the company by way of purchase of shares and debentures and becoming its
100% Hoiding Company. Currently, the Company is getting job works not as per their capacity, however, they are in the continuous process of searching the best
opportunities to expand the operations. Although, the management of the Company being controlied by its Holding Company which is listed and financially so much
stable to financially support the Company in case of requirement of funds.
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{A¥ amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated}

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2024

Liguidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial fiabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tahles

include both interest and principal cash flows as at balance sheet date:
Maturity analysis of unamortised financial liabilities

Particulars

Carrying value

Maturity analysis of contractual cash flows

Contractual cash flows

Eess than 1 vear]ﬂeen 1t05 vf More than 5 years

{A} As at 31st March, 2024

Total

Total

{i) Borrowings (Refer sote no. 19) 2,352.06 | Rs. 3,364 plus 3% p.a. from date of aflotment till date of conversion to
(i} Trade payables (Refer note no. 22) 33.80 33.80 33.80 - -
{ifi} Other financiai liabilities {Refer note no. 23} 546.32 546.32 546.32 - ;
2,932,18 580.12 580.12 - -
{8} As at 31st March, 2023
{i) Borrowings (Refer note no. 19) 2,177.83 | Rs. 3,364 plus 3% p.a. from date of allotment till date of conversion to
(3} Trade payables (Refer note no, 22) 39.60 39.60 38.60 - -
1 {iif} Other financia liahilities {Refer note no. 23} 541.69 541.69 £41.6% - -
2,758.12 581.28 581.29 - -

expected operational expenses and obligations,

Capital management
Risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a heaithy capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder vaiue. The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The Company is focused on keeping strong totaf eguity base to ensure independence, security, as well

a3 a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings.

The Company has current financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet

The Company monitozs capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total long-term debt divided by total equity

Particulars As at 31st § As at 31st March,
March, 2023
2024
Totaf long-term debt 2,352.06 2,177.83
Tetal equity 4,218.65 4,703.89
Debt-enuity ratio 0.56 0.46
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45 Liguidation proceedings, Certificate of sale and Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench order dated 7th September, 2022
Corporate insolvency Resclution Process {CIRP) was initiated in respect of Lotus Auto Engineering Limited ("the Company"} under the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptey Code, 2016 (Code) by an order of Hon'bie National Company taw Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi {"NCLT") vide its erder dated 1st August, 2018 and
r. Ashok Kumar Gulla was appointed as Interim Resclution Professional (IRP). Mr. Ashok Kumar Gulla was subsequently confirmed by the Committee of Creditors

{CoC) as Resolution Professional {RP).

Since no resolution plan came forth, the CoC in its meeting held on 15th November, 2019 resoived to liquidate the Company following which the Hon'ble NCLT on ist
June, 2020 ordered the liquidation of the Company and Mr, Ashok Kumnar Gulta was appointed as Liquidator for the Company vide order dated 12th June, 2020,

During the liquidation process, Deepak industries Limited (“DIL”) filed its proposal for the acquisition of the Company (Corporate debtor) and was adjudged as the
successful bidder. On payment of entire sale consideration of Rs. 3,800.00 by DIt on 28th May, 2021, the Liquidator issued sale certificate on 9th lune, 2022 for sale of|
the Company to DIL as a going concern without digsolution, which is akin to reselution plan under IBC,

The Liquidator, subsequent to the issuance of Certificate of Sale, fied an appiication before the Hon'ble NCLT, Principai Bench, New Delhi, seeking confirmation of sale
of the Corporate Debtor as a going concern, without dissolution, which is akin to resofution plan under IBC. Vide order dated 7th September, 2022, the Hon'ale NCLT|
confirmed the sale of the Corperate Debtor as a going concern without dissciution. Thus, effectively from 7th September, 2022, on receipt of order frem Hon'ble NCLY,

DIL has become the 100% Holding Company.

a. As per the sale certificate, safe proceeds of Rs. 3,800.00 from CIRP process has been distributed hy the Liquidator as per the waterfail mechanism under section 53 of
iBC.

b. All the fiabilities of the Corporate Debior incfuding contingent liabilities and statutory dues has been extinguished and assets got vested with the Corporate Debtor,
unless specified otherwise.

¢. Entire existing share capital of the Company had been cancelled and extinguished and in place of it, the Company had allotted 43,60,000 equity shares to DIL and its
nominee at par value of Rs. 10 each. The effect of the same had been taken in the previous year.

d. Issue of 3364 secured optionally fuily convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1 lakh each at par was shown as advance received for issue of debentures as on 31st
March, 2022, The effect of the same has been taken in the previous year on allotment thereof.

e. Change in cantrol of the Corporate Debtor by suspending existing directors and appointing new directors,

£, As per Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench order, an amount of Rs. 77.75 Lakhs is payable by the Company to a creditor out of the amount to be received from a debtor,
Therefore, the same has been shown as Nil {net] under contingent liabilities.

g Pursuant to the issuance of certificate of sale dated 9th June, 2021 and order of Hon'hle NCLT, New Delhi Bench dated 7th September, 2022 approving the sale of the
Company as a going concern, necessary write off of assets and write back of liabilities/ provisions has heen carried out in the books of accounts of the Company. Debit
or credit being the balancing figure has been adjusted by the Company in capitai reserve in FY 2021-22 which is detailed as follows:

Particulars Amount
{A} Details of llabilities written back {income)
Unsecured Loan from bodies corporate 3,529.62
Curreat maturities of long-term secured debt from banks 28,635.71
Interest accrued and due on secured loan from banks 10,096.49
Trade payables 4,313.68
Other current ltabilities 44,38
Total income 46,619.88
B. Details of assets written off {expenses)
Capital advance 12.95
Security deposit and others 3.92
VAT refundabie 56.64
Trade receivables 44,75
Duty under rebate 2811
TDS receivable 13.55
Other current assets 9.19
Other advances 98.97
{Total expenses 268.08 E
Transfer to capital reserve pursuant to effect of liguidation proceedings {net) 46,351.80

46 Mantainance of Fixed assets register and other reglisters required to be maintained under the Companies Act 2013
The Company is in the process of maintaining the fixed assets register and also identifying the fixed assets which are retired from active use and heid for disposal.

Further, the Company is aiso in the process of maintinaing other registers as prescribed under the Companies Act 2013,

47 Certain trade receivables, security deposits, loans, advances, other assets and trade payables are subject to confirmation/ reconcifiation and consequential

48 In the opinion of the management, property, plant and eguipment and current assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the financial statements and provision for all lisbilities have been made in the financial statements, which has been relied upon by,

the auditors,
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50 Ratio analysis and its elements

Lotus Auto Engineering Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Period ended 315t March , 2024

[All amount in Rs. {skhs, except otherwise slatad}

49 The Company, neither had any transactions during the Period ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 with campanies, which have been struck off by the Registrar of Companies, nor any
balance is outstanding from such companies as at the end of reporting period.

5t Ratio Numerator Denominatar 2023 - 2024 | 2022- 2023 % change with '
No. resgect to previous
yesy
(1) {Current ratio Current assets Current Habllitles 697 6.23 0.58%
[2} |Debt-equity ratio Long term berrowlngs (+) Current Equity computed as: £quity share 0.56 .46 20.42%
maturities of long term debt capital (+) Other equity
{3} |Debt service coverage ratio Profit/ {loss) for the year [Le, Profit/ |Finance costs (+) Current maturities 038 &.07 (93.74%] |Deferred tax assets
{loss) after tax} {+) Depreciation and |of lang term debt recognised during the
amortisation expense {+) Finance previous year
costs {-} Exceptional items

{4} |Return on equity ratio Profit/ {ioss} far the year {i.e., Profit/ |Average equity {11.89%} 0.27% (4503.70%) | Deferred tax sssets
recognised during the
previous year coupled with
incresse in finance costs
during the current year

{8} [Inventory turnover ratio Revenue from operations Average inventory 5.92 6.03 (1.82%)

{6) |Trade recelvables turnover |Revenue from operations Clesing trade receivadles 0.3¢ 0.29 3.45%

ratic

{7} |Frade payables turnover Purchases Closing trade payabies 9.17 5.87 56.11%|Increase in purchases during

ratio the current vear

{8} |Wet capital turnoverratio  {Revenue from operations Working capital 0.18 0.19 [2.34%)

(9) |Net profit ratio Profit/ {ioss) for the year [1e., Profit/ {Revenue from operations {082} 0.02 {4200.00%){ Deferred tax assets
recognised during the
previots year coupled with
increase in finance costs
during the current year

(18} |Return on capital employed |Profitf {loss) before tax (+) Interest  [Capital employed computed  as 0.76% 0.53% 41.74%:Increase in operationz!
on leng term borrowings (-} Equity {-) Intangible assets (+) Long losses during the current
£xceptional items term  borrowlngs  {$}  Current year

maturities of long term debt {+)/ {-}
Deferred tax lizbilities/ deferred tax|
accate

(11) |Return on investments Not applicable

51 QOther statutory information:

(i} No funds have been advanced or icaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or|
entity(ies}, inciuding foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimale Beneficiariesh, The Company has not received any fund from any party{s} (Funding Party] with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idantified by or on hehalf of the Funding Party {*Ultimate Beneficiarles”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behal of the
Ukimate Beneficiaries.

{it There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benam! property under the Senami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

$2 The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the hacks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the jncome

53 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency of Virtual Currency diring the current or previous year.

54 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards- Disclosures, Reconciliation, etc.

{a) Explanation of transition to Ind AS
The financial statements, for the yesr ended 315t March, 2023, were the first financiz statements, the Company hias prepared in accordance with ind AS.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at st April, 2021, i.e. the date of transition to Ind AS.

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company znd an explanation an how the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected its financial statements, including the
Balance Sheet as at 15t April, 2021 and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022,

Set out befow are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and msndatery exceptions applied in the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS:

{} The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all Property, plant and equipment under the previous GAAP as deamed cost as at the transition date e, 15t Aprit, 2021, as adjusted
for the effect of depreciation on fand- right of use as per the provisions of ind AS 116 "Leases”. Under the previous GAAP, Property, plant and equipment were stated at their original cost {net of
accumuiated depreciation and impairment},

(I} The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for intangible assets s recognized under the previous GAAP as deemed ¢ost as at the transition date. Under the previous GAAP,
intangible assets were stated at its original cost, net of accumulated amortization and impairment.

55 Comparative figures of the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged and disclosed wherever applicable ta confarm with financial statements of the current year.

56 The Company has applied for a merger with its holding company, M/s. Deepak Industries Limited, a company listed on the Calcuttz Stock Exchange Limited. This application has been submitted

to the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kelkata Bench, with an appointed date {effective date) of October 1, 2023, As of March 31, 2024, the scheme is pending approval. Therefore, no
effects of the proposed merger have been considered In these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For KBTG and Asscciates
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